
 

763.479.0527                                                  1920 County Road 90                                          Fax: 763.479.0528 
                                                                       Independence, MN 55359 
                                                                    www.ci.independence.mn.us 

Please note that, pursuant to the authority provided by Minn. Stat. Sec. 13D.021, subd. 1(1), the City has determined 
that in-person meetings of the City Council are not practical or prudent due to the COVID-19 public health pandemic 
and the declared national, state, and local emergencies.  Meetings of the Council will be conducted by electronic or 
telephonic means.  Under Minn. Stat. Sec. 13D.021, subd. 3, to the extent practical and possible, the City Council will 
allow individuals to monitor the meeting electronically.  Access to the meeting can be obtained online by following 
the link provided below or by contacting the City Hall for instructions and methods for obtaining access to the meeting. 

Meeting Access Information: https://www.ci.independence.mn.us/meetings 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA          
TUESDAY JANUARY 19, 2021 
 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING TIME: 6:30 PM 
 
1. Call to Order 
 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 

 
3. Roll Call 

 
4. ****Consent Agenda**** 
All items listed under Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by Council and will be acted 
on by one motion.  There will be no separate discussion of these items. If discussion is desired, 
that item will be removed from the Consent Agenda and will be considered separately. 
 

a. Approval of City Council Minutes from the January 5, 2021 Regular City Council 
Meeting. 

b. Approval of City Council Minutes from the January 12, 2021 City Council 
Workshop. 

c. Approval of Accounts Payable; (Batch #1 Checks Numbered 20194-20215 and Batch 
#2 Checks Numbered 20216-20235). 

d. Approval to Set the Date of the Local Board of Appeals and Equalization Meeting for 
Tuesday April 6, 2021 at 6:00 PM. 

e. Approval of Pay Request #1 From Rochon for the City Hall Renovation Project. 
 

5. Set Agenda – Anyone Not on the Agenda can be Placed Under Open/Misc.  
 

6. Reports of Boards and Committees by Council and Staff. 
 

7. West Hennepin Public Safety Director Gary Kroells: Presentation of the December 2020 
Activity Report. 

 



 

8. Recognition of Mayor Johnsons Appointment to National League of Cities Federal Advocacy 
Committee. 

 
9. Annual Consideration of Fee Schedule Amendments. 

 
a. RESOLUTION 21-0119-01 – Considering the Annual Update to the City’s Fee 

Schedule. 
 

10. Open/Misc. 
 

11. Adjourn. 



MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING OF THE 

INDEPENDENCE CITY COUNCIL  

TUESDAY, JANUARY 5, 2020 –6:30 P.M. 

(Virtual Meeting/ All Attendees) 

 

 

1.  CALL TO ORDER. 

 

Pursuant to due call and notice thereof, a regular meeting of the Independence City Council was called to 

order by Mayor Johnson at 6:30 p.m. 

 

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE. 

 

Mayor Johnson led the group in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

2. ROLL CALL (Note: all noted present were “virtually” present 

 

PRESENT: Mayor Johnson, Councilors Spencer, Betts, McCoy and Grotting 

ABSENT: None 

STAFF: City Administrator Kaltsas, Assistant to Administrator Horner, City Attorney Vose 

VISITORS: Jessica and Tom Healy 

 

3. ****Consent Agenda**** 

All items listed under Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by Council and will be acted on by one 

motion.  There will be no separate discussion of these items. If discussion is desired, that item will be 

removed from the Consent Agenda and will be considered separately. 

 

a. Approval of City Council Minutes from the December 15, 2020 Regular City Council Meeting. 

b. Approval of Accounts Payable; Batch #1 Checks Numbered 20144-20162 and Batch #2 Checks 

Numbered 20163-20179 and Batch #3 Checks Numbered 20180-20193. 

c. 4th Qtr. Building Permit Report – For Information. 

 

Motion by Betts, second by Spencer to approve the Consent Agenda. Ayes: Johnson, Spencer, McCoy, 

Grotting and Betts.  Nays: None.  Absent: None. Abstain. None.  MOTION DECLARED CARRIED. 

 

4. SET AGENDA – ANYONE NOT ON THE AGENDA CAN BE PLACED UNDER OPEN/MISC. 

 

5. REPORTS OF BOARDS AND COMMITTEES BY COUNCIL AND STAFF 

 

Spencer attended the following meetings: 

• None  

 

Grotting attended the following meetings: 

• Planning Commission Meeting 

 

McCoy attended the following meetings:  

• View Santa Event 

 



Betts attended the following meetings: 

• None 

 

Johnson attended the following meetings:  

• Police Commission Meeting 

• Planning Commission Meeting 

 

Horner attended the following meetings: 

• None 

 

Kaltsas attended the following meetings: 

• Bi-weekly meeting on County Road 92 and Highway 12 projects 

• Police Commission Meeting 

 

6. Annual City Council Appointments. 

 

a. RESOLUTION 21-0105-01 - Annual Council Appointments. 

 

Spencer said Joe Baker will continue his work with the watershed. Grotting noted he would like to give up his 

position at some point on the LMCC. Kaltsas said Mediacom is focused on getting customers live on County 

Road 6 line. 

 

Motion by McCoy, second by Spencer to approve RESOLUTION 21-0105-01 - Annual Council 

Appointments. Ayes: Johnson, Spencer, McCoy, Grotting and Betts.  Nays: None.  Absent: None. 

Abstain. None.  MOTION DECLARED CARRIED. 

 

7. Jessica Healy (Applicant/Owner) requests that the City consider the following action for the property 

located at 498 Kuntz Drive (PID No. 33-118-24-24-0008) in Independence, MN: 

 

a. RESOLUTION 21-0105-02 – Considering a conditional use permit to allow an accessory 

dwelling unit on the subject property. 

 

Kaltsas said the property is located at 498 Kuntz Drive which is generally located at the southeast corner of 

CSAH 6 and Kuntz Drive. The property is comprised of mostly upland with a wetland on the east side of the 

property. There are two existing accessory structures located on the property. The principal structure had 

been previously taken down due to the poor condition. The City allows accessory dwelling units (ADU) as a 

conditional use in the AG-Agriculture zoning district. 

 

The intent of the ordinance was to allow for “mother-in-law” type units to be located within the principal 

structure or within a detached accessory building. The applicant recently acquired this property and the 

property to the north and discussed regulations relating to ADUs for this property. The applicant is planning 

on constructing a principal residence on this property in 2021 and would like the City to consider allowing a 

separate detached ADU. 

 

This property historically had an existing residence that was located inside of the loop driveway (near the 

existing well). The home was removed between 2016-2018. There is an existing Quonset building and 

barn located on the property. The applicant has prepared plans for the development of the property which 

include both the principal and accessory dwelling units. The City has adopted standards requiring the ADU 



to be proportional and subordinate to the principal structure. The proposed principal house and accessory 

dwelling unit have the following specifics: The proposed accessory dwelling unit is comprised of a combined 

bedroom, kitchen and living area with a bathroom and laundry. In order for the City to consider a CUP for an 

accessory dwelling unit, the applicant will need to demonstrate how they meet all applicable criteria for 

granting a conditional use permit and for an accessory dwelling unit. The City has criteria broadly relating to 

Conditional Use Permits and then more focused criteria relating specifically to accessory dwelling units. 

 

An accessory dwelling unit must meet the following criteria: 

 

Subd. 2. "Accessory Dwelling Unit." A secondary dwelling unit that is: (a) Physically attached to or within a 

single-family dwelling unit or within a detached accessory building that has a principal structure on the 

parcel; and 

 

The applicant is proposing to construct a detached accessory dwelling unit. 

(b) Subordinate in size to the single-family dwelling unit; and 

 

The proposed accessory dwelling unit would be subordinate in size to the single-family dwelling unit. 

(c) Fully separated from the single-family dwelling unit by means of a wall or floor, with or without 

a door; and 

 

The proposed accessory dwelling unit would be in a detached structure which is separated from the 

single-family home. 

(d) Architecturally compatible with the principal structure (using materials, finishes, style and colors 

similar to the principal structure); and 

 

The proposed ADU has been designed to be architecturally similar to the proposed principal structure. 

Architecture and materials appear to be consistent with the existing home. 

(e) The lesser of 33% of the above ground living area of the principal structure or 1,200 square feet, and no 

less than 400 square feet; and  

 

The principal structure is proposed to be 1,479 square feet of above ground living space not including 

the basement. 33% of 1,479 square feet equals 488 square feet. The applicant is proposing to construct 

a 480 square foot accessory dwelling unit. The proposed square footage would be approximately equal 

to the total permitted maximum amount of square feet permitted for this property. 

(f) Not in excess of the maximum square footage for accessory structures as permitted in this 

code; and 

 

The existing property is 10 acres in size and therefore does not have a limitation on the total square 

footage for detached accessory structures. For context, the existing Quonset is 3,200 SF and the existing 

barn is 1,500 SF. 

(g) Has permanent provisions for cooking, living and sanitation; and 

 

The applicant is proposing to construct permanent provisions for cooking; living and sanitation (see 

attached depiction). (h) Has no more than 2 bedrooms; and 

 

The applicant is proposing to have one bedroom within the accessory dwelling unit. 

(i) Limited to relatives of the homesteaded owner occupants or the homesteaded owners of the 

principal structure. The total number of individuals that reside in both the principal dwelling unit 

and accessory dwelling unit may not exceed the number that is allowed by the building code; 



and 

The owner of the property is proposing that the accessory dwelling unit will be occupied by her family. 

(j) Uses the existing on-site septic system or an approved holding tank; and 

 

The proposed accessory structure will be connected to the new septic system that also serves the 

principal residence. 

(k) Respectful of the future subdivision of the property and the primary and secondary septic sites. 

The City may require a sketch of the proposed future subdivision of a property; and 

 

The accessory structure does not impede the ability of the owner to subdivide the property in the future 

or utilize a secondary septic site. 

(l) In compliance with the adopted building code relating to all aspects of the dwelling unit. 

 

The applicant will be required to obtain a building permit for all proposed improvements. 

a On lots less than 2.5 acres, the accessory dwelling unit must be attached to the principal dwelling 

unit or located/constructed within an existing detached accessory structure that meets all criteria of 

this section. 

b The existing on-site septic system will be required to be inspected by the City to ensure 

compliance with all applicable standards. Any system that does not meet all applicable standards 

shall be brought into compliance as a part of the approval of the accessory dwelling unit. 

 

The applicant has discussed the proposed improvements to the property with the City. The applicant has 

submitted a site survey, sketch of the proposed building plans, elevations of the proposed principal 

residence and ADU and a site plan. The accessory dwelling unit will need to meet all applicable building 

codes and building regulations. 

 

As proposed, the accessory dwelling unit appears to meet all applicable criteria established in the zoning 

ordinance for granting a conditional use permit for an accessory dwelling unit. The criteria for granting a 

conditional use permit are clearly delineated in the City’s Zoning Ordinance (Section 520.11 subd. 1, a-i) as 

follows: 

 

1. The conditional use will not adversely affect the health, safety, morals and general welfare of occupants of 

surrounding lands. 

2. The proposed use will not have a detrimental effect on the use and enjoyment of other property in the 

immediate vicinity for the proposes already permitted or on the normal and orderly development and 

improvement of surrounding vacant property for uses predominant in the area. 

3. Existing roads and proposed access roads will be adequate to accommodate anticipated traffic. 

4. Sufficient off-street parking and loading space will be provided to serve the proposed use. 

5. The proposed conditional use can be adequately serviced by public utilities or on-site sewage treatment, 

and sufficient area of suitable soils for on-site sewage treatment is available to protect the city form pollution 

hazards. 

6. The proposal includes adequate provision for protection of natural drainage systems, natural topography, 

tree growth, water courses, wetlands, historic sites and similar ecological and environmental features. 

7. The proposal includes adequate measures to prevent or control offensive odor, fumes, dust, noise, or 

vibration so that none of these will constitute a nuisance. 

8. The proposed condition use is consistent with the comprehensive plan of the City of Independence. 

9. The proposed use will not stimulate growth incompatible with prevailing density standards. 

 

 



 

Consideration for the proposed conditional use permit should weigh the impact of having an accessory 

dwelling unit located on this property. The proposed new home and ADU appear to be designed so that 

they are compatible and consistent. The size of the property, the proximity to surrounding properties and 

the general geographic location within the City will help to mitigate any impacts of having an ADU. 

Consideration for the proposed conditional use permit should weigh the impact of having an accessory 

dwelling unit located on this property. The proposed new home and ADU appear to be designed so that 

they are compatible and consistent. The size of the property, the proximity to surrounding properties and 

the general geographic location within the City will help to mitigate any impacts of having an ADU. 

Should the CUP to allow an accessory dwelling unit be recommended for approval by the Planning 

Commission, it is suggested that the following conditions be noted by the City: 

 

The Conditional Use Permit will be subject to the applicant constructing the principal structure on the 

property and successfully obtaining and completing a building permit for all applicable improvements 

required for a dwelling unit. The ADU will be constructed in accordance with the approved plans. 

The ADU will meet all applicable setbacks of the City’s zoning ordinance.  

 

The Planning Commission reviewed the request and asked questions of the applicant and staff. 

Commissioners questioned if the City could permit an ADU without having an existing principal structure on 

the property noting that the principal structure had been razed. Commissioners discussed the potential 

sequencing of construction and asked the applicant about the need to construct both structures 

simultaneously. The applicant noted that the cost and efficiency of constructing both together was 

considerable and stated that they understood the requirement to have a principal structure on the property. 

 

Staff noted that it is not uncommon for buyers to seek approval of a “master plan” for a property prior to 

commencing construction. This allows them the ability to know for certain that they can construct the 

accessory structure. Commissioners also asked staff if the proposed accessory structure could be 

constructed without the ADU classification? Staff noted that the structure itself would be permitted as an 

accessory structure as long as it did not have a bedroom or stove. Commissioners ultimately found that the 

requirements for granting a CUP for the ADU. Commissioners asked staff to have the City Attorney draft a 

condition that addressed the sequencing of construction and the need for the principal structure to be granted 

occupancy prior to the ADU.  

 

The Planning Commission recommended approval of the requested Conditional Use Permit to the City 

Council with the following findings and conditions: 

 

1. The proposed Conditional Use Permit request meets all applicable conditions and restrictions stated 

in Chapter V, Section 510, Zoning, in the City of Independence Zoning Ordinance. 

2. The Conditional Use Permit will be issued subject to the following items being completed: 

 

A. The Conditional Use Permit allowing the Accessory Dwelling Unit is subject to the applicant’s 

construction of, and permitted occupancy in, a principal structure on the property. No certificate of occupancy 

for the Accessory Dwelling Unit will be issued, and no occupancy of such Unit will be allowed, until the 

applicant obtains a certificate of occupancy for the principal structure. 

 

B. The ADU will require the issuance of a building permit from the City and be constructed in accordance 

with the approved plans. 

 

C. The ADU will meet all applicable setbacks of the City’s zoning ordinance. 



 

3. Prior to the City Council placing the Conditional Use Permit into effect, the applicant shall provide the 

City with the following items: 

 

A. The Applicant shall pay for all costs associated with the City’s review of the requested 

conditional use permit. 

 

Johnson asked if there was a minimum lot size in the Ag district and Kaltsas said the minimum was 2.5 acres. 

Johnson noted the accessory unit would not be occupied before the main dwelling unit.  

 

Healy’s said they were excited to move to Independence. 

 

Motion by Spencer, second by McCoy to approve RESOLUTION 21-0105-02 – for a conditional use 

permit to allow an accessory dwelling unit on the subject property located at 498 Kuntz Drive (PID No. 

33-118-24-24-0008) in Independence, MN: Ayes: Johnson, Spencer, McCoy and Betts.  Nays: None.  

Absent: None. Abstain. Grotting.  MOTION DECLARED CARRIED. 

 

8. OPEN/MISC. 

 

9. ADJOURN. 
 

Motion by Betts, second by Grotting to adjourn at 7:05 p.m. Ayes: Johnson, Grotting, McCoy, Betts 

and Spencer.  Nays: None.  Absent: None. None. Abstain. None.  MOTION DECLARED CARRIED. 

_____________________________ 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Trish Gronstal/ Recording Secretary 

 

 



MINUTES OF A WORK SESSION OF THE 

INDEPENDENCE CITY COUNCIL  

THURSDAY JANUARY 12, 2021–7:00 A.M. 

(virtual meeting- all attendees) 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER. 

 

Pursuant to due call and notice thereof, a work session of the Independence City Council was called to order 

by Mayor Johnson at 7:00 a.m. 

 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

3.  ROLL CALL  

 

PRESENT: Mayor Johnson, Councilors Betts, Spencer, Grotting, and McCoy 

ABSENT: None 

STAFF: City Administrator Kaltsas, Assistant to Administrator Horner, City Attorney Vose 

VISITORS: WHPS Chief Kroells 

 

4.  General Administration:  

 

A. 2021 Council Goals and Objectives. 

 

Kaltsas said Staff is asking Council to consider important or key issues that they would like to see worked on 

and or addressed in 2021. There is no real preconceived idea with this item, but rather, I would like to have a 

brief discussion relating to possible projects and or focus areas. 

 

Kaltsas noted one project the City will be working on is digitizing files so all paper resources are easily 

searchable. Johnson said he may have some files on landfills that may be useful to someone if they were 

digitized. Betts asked about the Torrens information getting digitized also. Kaltsas said a map could be looked 

at to determine Torrens properties but it is not that common. Grotting said that landfill information would be 

good to have filed as well. 

 

B. Police Commission JPA Discussion. 

 

Kaltsas said based on a general discussion held by the Police Commissioners while preparing the 2021 

budget, direction was provided to have staff and each City further review the Joint Powers Agreement (JPA). 

 

The WHPS Commission is going to meet in February to begin reviewing the JPA in more detail. A couple 

of the items discussed by the Commission are as follows: 

 

• Requiring and establishing a 3–5-year budget and capital improvement plan. WHPS currently 

 prepares and adopts a 1-year budget. 

• Reviewing the formula and historic data related to the formula. The formula currently averages 

 tax capacity, population and calls for service. 

• Review the current cancelation clause and consider establishing a longer-term notification period 

 to provide the department with a more stable forecast (the current cancelation clause in the 

 contract requires no less than 367 days’ notice). 



Staff is providing a copy of the JPA and has also prepared a quick analysis of the last 14 years of 

variables used in the formula. Staff/Commissioners would like to provide a brief overview of the 

discussion and will be looking for additional discussion and direction related to the JPA. 

 

Johnson asked Kroells if there were any other measurements that should be included. Kroells stated he needs 

stability for his staff. He said a longer contract would be nice so it was not a yearly issue and his staff could 

feel more secure. Kroells stated now more than ever the police are needed and staffing a force is not always 

easy. He noted Independence pays for more calls than Maple Plain. 54% of the time is spent in Independence 

and 46% of the time in Maple Plain but Maple Plain pays less.  

 

Betts said a three-year contract makes sense with a 3.3% increase built in. She said that would be a lot more 

stable. Spencer asked Kroells if Maple Plain was asking how this should be addressed. Kroells said they have 

stated that WHPS is too expensive. Spencer said a fixed percentage allocation could be looked at to stabilize 

the budget. Kroells said it could be considered but both cities would have to agree on the number. Kroells 

stated the 38M Haven Homes residence and the five new homes in 2020 should up their tax capacity. He also 

noted the increased calls that will happen with the completion of Haven Homes.  

 

C. Fire Department District/JPA Discussions. 
 

Kaltsas said the cities of Medina, Long Lake and Orono have been discussing the possibility of creating a fire 

district or similar JPA to provide fire services as a regional service. Medina recently completed a feasibility 

study relating to how they can provide fire services to the City (see attached study). Based on some of the 

concepts explored in the study, Medina and Long Lake have continued to explore a regional fire district. 

Orono, Maple Plain, Hamel, Loretto and Independence have also been invited to attend several recent 

meetings relating to the fire services district.  

 

Medina has also provided notification to the City of Maple Plain Fire Department that they will not be asking 

for fire services after 2021 (see attached letter). Staff has attended two meetings with the group to listen to the 

information being presented for informational purposes. Staff has also met independently with the Loretto and 

Maple Plain Fire Departments to discuss the possibility of creating a smaller fire district or similar JPA. 

Following that meeting, I asked AEM to prepare some preliminary information relating to the financial 

outcomes of combining fire departments (tax implications, capital, operating). 

 

Staff would like to have a discussion relating to current and future fire services for Independence. 

 

Johnson said Loretto had done a study several years ago and he thought it was not to merge with the Hamel 

Fire Department. Kaltsas said that was correct. He noted Corcoran was a big piece of Loretto and they are 

committed to Loretto and want to continue contracting with them for the foreseeable future. Maple Plain and 

Loretto Fire have a cohesive relationship without trying to meld in others. 

 

Betts asked the impact on the Delano Fire Service. Kaltsas said we would eliminate Delano if a JPA district 

was developed. Calls are small to Delano and they have slower response times than Maple Plain and Loretto. 

He noted that is due to their location in the City. There have also been some issues with them being in Wright 

County with dispatch calls, etc.  

 

Kaltsas said a JPA would mean lower capital costs and equipment costs. He noted we have enough 

firefighters and with the savings could bring on full-time staff.  

 



Betts noted the building needed improvements and wondered if a district would alleviate that need to do the 

updates. Kaltsas said it could alleviate that as Loretto would build a new site and have the land already to do 

it. Betts said that would be to Maple Plain’s advantage as well.  

 

McCoy said it was well-worth looking at a Fire District. He said the fire stations are well situated the way 

they are now. Independence should look at this to be viable and he noted the way this is being done currently 

is not sustainable in the long run.  

 

D. City Hall Construction Update. 

o Review and Discussion of Front Entrance 

 

Kaltsas said the City Hall bids included some general front entrance improvements in the base bid. Staff had 

asked the architect to prepare several additional concepts that could be considered by the City. Three concepts 

were prepared, and additional investigation was done relating to the possibility of relocating or lowering 

the existing well head that exists in front of the building. It has been determined that due to the elevation 

of the well and the minimal ground cover required, lowering the well head is not feasible.  

 

Staff would like feedback relating to the two options and associated costs attached to this report (Concept A 

and Concept C). 

 

Kroells stated the drive through in concept A was not a good idea and said Concept C would be safer. Betts 

agreed and said she liked Concept C. Grotting said he liked the plaza feel better than the drive through 

(Concept C) as long as ADA compliance is in place. Spencer liked the more formal feel of (Concept C) and 

said it is more attractive. 

 

E. Sewer Rate Increase. 

 

Kaltsas said Staff previously presented and discussed the update to the Sewer Rate Study that was completed 

in August of 2020 (see attached). The study considered two scenarios for increasing rates and fees to be 

able to stabilize the sewer fund. In order to move forward with the recommendations of the study, the 

City will need to adopt an increase to both the quarterly sewer rate and sewer connection fee. Staff is 

recommending that the City consider increasing the quarterly sewer rate per the study. The proposed quarterly 

rate increase is consistent with the rate increases considered and approved in the 2017 Sewer Rate Study. The 

quarterly fee for both sewer users and those that have sewer availability, would be $242. This represents a 5% 

increase from 2020 for sewer users and a 21% increase for sewer availability customers (see study below). In 

addition, it is recommended that the City consider raising the sewer connection fee for new construction. The 

current fee is $1,250 and the proposed fee is $5,150 per unit. Staff is recommending that properties with an 

existing stub that have not yet connected to the sewer be charged the $1,250 connection fee. Staff would like 

to review this information with Council and is seeking direction and further discussion. 

 

Johnson said the connection suggestion was very good and Betts agreed that it is more encouraging.  

 

F. Planning Commission Appointments. 

 

Kaltsas said the City has two seats that are up for reappointment on the Planning Commission. Both existing 

Commissioners would like to renew their positions. Staff was made aware of another resident that is 

interested in serving on the Planning Commission. Staff would like to discuss the appointment of 

Planning Commissioners with Council. 

 



Johnson said there should be notice in the paper of the openings so people may file for it if interested. Betts 

asked what the attendance records looked like of the Commissioners. Kaltsas said that could be looked at and 

Horner noted it was fairly consistent. Spencer said historically it had been a challenge to fill these positions as 

they are volunteer, and it was noted that it could possibly be a flexible number. He said it makes a nice 

stepping stone to get into City Council or elected office. Johnson said that was a good point and noted 

Minnetrista has a system of alternates in case someone is absent, and voting may still take place. Kaltsas said 

Victoria also has an alternate system and those individuals are able to vote when needed.  
 

4. Adjourn 

 

Johnson adjourned the meeting at 8:32 a.m. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

__________________________________ 

Trish Gronstal, Recording Secretary 

 



City of Independence 

Set Date for Annual Board of Appeals and Equalization 

To: City Council 

From: Mark Kaltsas, City Administrator 

Meeting Date: January 19, 2021 

Discussion: 

Each year the City is required to set the date for the annual Board of Appeals and Equalization 

Meeting. The City Council has the ability to hold the annual meeting in lieu of Hennepin 

County holding the meeting. The City is required to have at least one Council Member that has 

completed the training for Board of Appeals and Equalization Training. Councilmember 

Brad Spencer is currently certified by the Local Board. 

Requested Action: 

It is recommended that the City Council set the date for the Board of Appeals and Equalization 
Meeting for Tuesday April 6th, 202 l at 6:00 p.m. 

Page 1 



 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

To:  City Clerk/City Administrator 
 
From:  Kim Jensen, Senior Appraiser  
 
Date:  January 5, 2021  
 
Re:  2021 Local Board of Appeal and Equalization Meeting  
  
  

Tuesday, April 6  6:00 PM 
Date  Time 

 
Minnesota Statute 274.01, Subdivision 1, requires that the County Assessor set the date and time for 
your local board of appeal and equalization meeting. We are proposing the date and time referenced 
above.   
 
Please confirm the above date and time or if you wish to change the date, send me an alternative by 
January 29.  In addition to the date, please complete the form (please print) with the name of the local 
board of appeal and equalization members.  If you have any questions, please contact me at 
kimberly.jensen@hennepin.us. 
 
Please return this form to AO.Programs@hennepin.us . 
 

 
CONFIRMATION 

 

City:  
 

Board Member: 
 

Date: 
 

Board Member: 
 

Time: 
 

Board Member: 
 

Location:  
 

Board Member: 
 

  
Board Member: 

 

  
Board Member: 

 

  
Board Member: 

 

   
City Clerk/Administrator Signature 

   

 



Mark Kaltsas 

City of Independence 

1920 County Rd 90 

Maple Plain, MN  

55359  

 

January 7, 2021 

 

Dear Mark, 

 

We have received Payment Application #1 from Rochon Corporation for the Independence 

City Hall Renovation, with cover letter dated December 7th, 2020. 

We have reviewed the application against work completed and documented work stored 

within the invoice period listed on the application and recommend payment of the listed 

current payment due, $45,674.74 which includes a retainage of 5.00% of completed work.  

If there are any questions I can answer, please reach out via email or phone. 

 

Susan Morgan, AIA 

Associate Partner, Senior Project Manager 

BKV Group 

 

 

 







01/07/21



























 

 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE 
January 14, 2021 
 
Press Contact: 
City of Independence 
1920 County Road 90 
Independence, MN 55359 
 

Marvin Johnson Appointed to Serve on National League of Cities’  
Energy, Environment and Natural Resources Federal Advocacy  Committee 

 
January 1, 2021 — Mayor Marvin Johnson, Mayor of City of Independence MN, has been 
appointed to the National League of Cities (NLC) 2021 EENR Federal Advocacy Committee. 
Mayor Johnson was elected to a one-year term and will provide strategic direction and 
guidance for NLC’s federal advocacy agenda and policy priorities. The appointment was 
announced by NLC President Kathy Maness, councilmember, Lexington, South Carolina. 
 
“Mayor Marvin Johnson’s 20 years of experience and commitment on this committee will 
continue to bring great value from the local level to the national level”, responded City 
Administrator Mark Kaltsas. 
 
As a committee member, Johnson will play a key role among a diverse group of local leaders in 
shaping NLC’s policy positions and advocating on behalf of America’s cities and towns before 
Congress, with the administration and at home. 
 
“Our federal advocacy committees are the voices of what’s happening on the ground in our 
communities,” said Kathy Maness, councilmember of Lexington, South Carolina, and 
President of the National League of Cities (NLC). “I am proud to have Marvin Johnson join 
NLC's EENR committee on behalf of his residents. Together with a team of local leaders from 
around the country, we will work to solve the most pressing challenges facing our 
communities.” 
 
For more information on NLC’s federal advocacy committees, visit: 
www.nlc.org/advocacy/committees.  
 

### 
 

The National League of Cities (NLC) is dedicated to helping city leaders build better 
communities. NLC is a resource and advocate for 19,000 cities, towns and villages, representing 

more than 218 million Americans. www.nlc.org 



December 15, 2020 

 

NLC President Council Member Kathy Maness 

National League of Cities 

660 North Capitol St NW 

Washington, DC 20001 

 

Dear President Maness, 

 

On behalf of the League of Minnesota Cities, I would like to express our enthusiastic support for the 

following applicants to the 2021 National League of Cities Federal Advocacy Committees: 

 

Community and Economic Development Committee 

• Jeff Weisensel, Council Member, City of Rosemount 
 

Energy, Environment and Natural Resources Committee 

• Evan Brown, Council Member, City of Red Wing 

• Deborah Calvert, Council Member, City of Minnetonka 

• Jo Emerson, Mayor, City of White Bear Lake 

• Carly Johnson, Council Member, City of Oak Park Heights 

• Marvin Johnson, Mayor, City of Independence 

• Larry Kraft, Council Member, City of St. Louis Park 

• Kim Norton, Mayor, City of Rochester 
 

Information Technology and Communications Committee 

• Jo Emerson, Mayor, City of White Bear Lake 
 

Public Safety and Crime Prevention Committee 

• Tim Brausen, Council Member, City of St. Louis Park 

• Lisa Schaefer, Assistant City Manager, City of Edina 
 

Transportation and Infrastructure Services Committee 

• William Droste, Mayor, City of Rosemount 

• Dan Kealy, Council Member, City of Burnsville 

• Patrick Keane, Council Member, City of Rochester 

• Mary McComber, Mayor, City of Oak Park Heights 

• Suzie Nakasian, Council Member, City of Northfield 

 

These dedicated individuals will bring insight and expertise to your committees and serve the process 

well. Please do not hesitate to contact Ann Lindstrom at alindstrom@lmc.org or 651-281-1261 with any 

questions. 

 

Thank you, 

 

 

Brad Wiersum 

President, League of Minnesota Cities 

 

mailto:alindstrom@lmc.org


Page 1 

 

City of Independence  
2021 Fee Schedule Adoption 

 
To: City Council 

 
From: Mark Kaltsas, City Administrator 

 
Meeting Date: January 19, 2021 

 

 
Discussion: 
The City annually reviews and adopts the City’s fee schedule to ensure that the cost of providing 
various services is commensurate with the services provided.  The City identified several fees that 
should be amended based on the costs of providing services and or administration of the fees in 
2020.  In addition, the City will increase quarterly sewer charges in accordance with the adopted 
Sewer Rate Study.   
 
The following fees are proposed to be amended: 

 
1. The City has identified that the wetland and grading permit fees of $500 does not fully cover the 

costs for more complex grading and wetland permits submitted to the City.  Our review of the fee 
also identified a lower cost for simple grading and wetland permits issued.  In order to align fees 
charged with the cost of providing the services, it is recommended that the City reduce the base 
fee of these permits from $500 to $300 and require a deposit of $700 that will be used to pay for 
consultant charges associated with the review and approval of the permits.  This type of fee 
structure will reduce the base fee paid for the permit, but will also provide for adequate funds to 
cover consultant fees for more complex applications.    
 
Wetland and Grading Permit Fees:  $300 with a $700 deposit ($500 with no deposit   

(in 2020) 
 

2. Quarterly sewer charges are proposed to be amended in accordance with the City’s sewer charge 
study that was updated in August of 2020.  The updated study found that the City’s Sewer Fund 
was is improving, but still in need of an increase to the sewer rate and sewer connection fees. 
The quarterly sewer fees will be amended for 2021 as follows: 

 
a.   Quarterly sewer access charge    $242 ($231 in 2020) 
b.   Quarterly availability charge  $242 ($200 in 2020) 
 

Staff previously presented and discussed the update to the Sewer Rate Study that was completed 
in August of 2020.  The study considered two scenarios for increasing rates and fees to be able to 
stabilize the sewer fund.  In order to move forward with the recommendations of the study, the City 
will need to adopt an increase to both the quarterly sewer rate and sewer connection fee. 

The study recommends that the City consider increasing the quarterly sewer rate per the study.  The 
proposed quarterly rate increase is consistent with the rate increases considered and approved in 



Page 2 

 

the 2017 Sewer Rate Study.  The quarterly fee for both sewer users and those that have sewer 
availability, would be $242.  This represents a 5% increase from 2020 for sewer users and a 21% 
increase for sewer availability customers (see study below).  In addition, it is recommended that the 
City consider raising the sewer connection fee for new construction.  The current fee is $1,250 and 
the proposed fee is $5,150 per unit.  Staff is recommending that properties with an existing stub that 
have not yet connected to the sewer continue to be charged the $1,250 connection fee.  

 

2017 Study 

   

 

2020 Study 



Page 3 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
Council Recommendation: 
City Council is asked to consider approval of RESOLUTION NO. 21-0119-01 adopting the 2021 fee 
schedule. 
 
 
Attachments: Proposed Fee Schedule 2021 (Changes 

Highlighted in Yellow) 
RESOLUTION NO. 21-0119-01 



	

763.479.0527																																																		1920	County	Road	90																																						Fax:	763.479.0528	
																																																																							Independence,	MN	55359	
																																																																				www.ci.independence.mn.us	
	

	
CITY OF INDEPENDENCE 

RESOLUTION NO. 21-0119-01 
 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING AN UPDATE TO THE  
CITY’S FEE SCHEDULE 

 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Independence (the “City) is a municipal corporation under the 
laws of Minnesota; and 

 
  WHEREAS, the City has adopted a Fee Schedule to set forth fees for certain services 
provided by the City; and 
 
  WHEREAS, the Fee Schedule is referred to in the City’s Code of Ordinances and 
determined to be necessary to ensure that the City is reimbursed for the cost of providing the 
services. 
 
  NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
INDEPENDENCE, MINNESOTA: 
 

1. The Fee Schedule attached hereto as Exhibit A is hereby adopted. 
 

This resolution was adopted by the City Council of the City of Independence on this 
19th day of January 2021, by a vote of ____ayes and ____nays. 

 
 
 

______________________________ 
       Marvin Johnson, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 __________________________________ 
Mark Kaltsas, City Administrator 
	

 
	

	
	



LIQUOR LICENSES 
 

Wine, on sale $  600 
On-sale intoxicating $5500 
Off-sale intoxicating $  240 
Sunday On-sale $  200 
Beer Off-sale $    50 
Beer On-sale $  500 
Setup $  500 
Investigation fee $  500 
Temporary liquor (1-4 days) $  100/day 
 
DOG LICENSES (#) 

 
Lifetime License $     20 
Replacement tag $      2 
Dangerous Dog annual fee $   500 
Dog Impound Fee 1st Violation $     35 
   2nd Violation $     70 
   3rd Violation $   105 

 
SERVICE FEES (#) 

 
Address Labels $    50 
Address List $    30 
Copies 8 ½ x 11 $   .75 
Copies, Oversize $      1 
Copies: City Code Book $    60 
Copies: Subdivision Ordinance $    15 
Copies: Zoning Ordinance $    15 
Copies: Shoreland Ordinance $    15 
Copies: City Comp. Plan $    40 
Copies: Park Comp. Plan $    15 
Copies: Audit Book $    45 
City Address Map $      8 
Zoning Map (color) $      5 
Land Use Map (color) $      5 
Assessment Search written req. $    25 
Flood Zone Search written req. $    25 
Ag Preserve Application $    50 
Ag Preserve Expiration $    50 
NSF Check $    30 
Special Council Meeting fee $  250 
Election Filing fee $      2 
 

 
SIGN PERMIT (#) 

 
Temporary (administrative)              $   100 
Permanent Sign/Site Plan Review   $   250 
Farm Nameplate  Sign Permit          $    25 

ZONING FEES 
 
Extension $   250 
Appeal Admin. Decision $   750 
Move Building $   175 
Zoning Permit (Sheds, Ag buildings) $     40 

   Accessory Building Review                   $   100 
Grading Permit (100 cu yd or more)  $    300+700 
deposit. 
(if less than 100 cu. yd, no permit  
required.) 
Wetland Delineation/Review                 $   300+700 
deposit. 
 

Other (non-defined) Planning/Review: $   250 
 
Staff time in excess of application fees: 

 Professional per hour $   100 
Clerical per hour $     75  

      
Planning Application Type I-Application Fee: 
$1,250/Additional Fee Deposit $750 
 

• Minor Subdivision (Minor Subdivision (Lot 
Line Rearrangement, Lot Consolidation, 
Rural View Lot Subdivision, Lot Split-2 lots 
or less) 

• Rezoning 
• Conditional Use Permit (residential) 
• Interim Use Permit (residential) 
• Right of Way or Easement Vacation 
• Simple Concept Plan 
• Simple Zoning Text Amendment 
• Simple Site Plan Review 

 
Planning Application Type II-Application Fee: 
$1,750/Additional Fee Deposit $1,500 
 

• Preliminary Plat (3 lots or more) - (plus 
$250 per lot) 

• Final Plat (plus $250 per lot) 
• Conditional Use Permit (commercial) 
• Interim Use Permit (commercial) 
• Comprehensive Plan Amendment 
• Complex Concept Plan 
• Complex Site Plan Review 
• Complex Zoning Text Amendment 

 
After-the-fact fees  double 
 
 

 
 
PARK DEDICATION FEES 

 
$3500 per lot to 4.99 acres + $750 per acre over 5 
acres. 

 
MISC. PERMIT/REIMBURSEMENT FEES 

 
Fireworks Dealer License    $      75 
Tower (wireless communication)         $  1000 
Mailbox Reimbursement                      $     125 

 
    LICENSES (#) 

 
 Garbage hauler/per year $   150 
 Per truck per year $     20 
 Tobacco $   100 

  1st Offense $     75 
  2nd Offense $   200 
  3rd Offense & over $   250 

 Solicitation $   100 
 

   FLAT FEE BUILDING PERMIT FEES (#) 
 

Mechanical  
Furnace $  100 
Air Conditioner $  100 
Gas Fireplace $  100 
Water Heater $    50 
Wood stove/fireplace $  100 
Chimney $  100 
Fuel tank removal $  100 
Lawn Sprinkler $  100 
Plumbing remodel $  100 
Plumbing new $  100 
  ($10 per fixture over five) 
Re-roof $  100 
Re-side $  100 
Window replacement same size $  100 (1) + 
   ($10 each additional opening)                              

 
Flat Fee State Permit Surcharge Add  $ 1 

(Example: A/C + Furnace = $201) 
 

Demolition $  100 
Driveway $  100 

    Right Of Way                                       $  100 
 
All Other Building Permits Based on Value 
Electrical Permits (Contact State) 

 



SEPTIC FEES 
 

Private On-site Permit $       300 
Mound Repair $   150 
Abandonment of System/Tank $     75 
Holding Tank with Pumping Agreement $   100 
              First Year $     50 
              Annual                         $         25 
Operating Permit Business $       175 
              First Year                  $       175 
              Annual                      $         75 
Mid-Size System                               $       400 
              (+ $1,000 deposit) 
 
*Total New Sewer Connection Fee $  7760 

- *Includes $ 5150 City Sewer Permit  
- Includes $ 125 Street to house connect 
- Includes $ 2485 SAC (MUSA line) 

*Property with an existing sewer stub will  
pay $1,250 for the City Sewer Permit. 
 
Quarterly sewer access charge $      242 
Quarterly availability charge $      242 
(dwellings not connected to available sewer) 
Winter septic holding tank deposit* $     8000 
  *Plus Administrative fee $         55 
 
 
OTHER INSPECTION FEES 

 
Investigation/Re-inspection Fee  $     100/1st Hr     

    $        50/Hr. 
Fire Damage Inspection $     100 
 
 
COMMUNITY ROOM RENTAL (#) 
(maximum 200 guests) 
 
Non-Profit                                                $        75 
Security /Damage Deposit $      650 
False Fire Alarm $      350 
Organizations regular mtgs. $      100 
Events under 50 – resident $      150 
Events under 50 – non-resident $      250 
Events 50 – 100 – resident $      200 
Events 50 – 100 – non-resident $      400 
Events 101 – 150 – resident $      300 
Events 101 – 150 – non-resident $      500 
Events 151 – 200 – resident $      400 
Events 151 – 200 – non-resident $      750  
Funeral – resident $         50 
Funeral – non-resident $      100 

Wedding – resident $      400 
Wedding – non-resident $  1000 
 
CONFERENCE ROOM RENTAL (#) 
(seats 25 people) 
 
Rent per day $    100 

 with kitchen $    150 
 per hour  $      35 

 
OVERWEIGHT VEHICLE PERMIT FEES-AT THE 
DISCRETION OF PUBLIC WORKS SUPERVISOR 
 
Daily Permit (per truck/ day max 7 ton)   $     100 
Single Trip-Seasonal, Home Delivery      $     250 
Commercial Tow Truck (per occurrence) $     750 
No Permit                                            DOUBLE FEE 
Emergency-Well & Septic (max 7 ton) NO CHARGE 
Resident Annual to/from (max 5 ton)   NO CHARGE  
                                                                                                                                     
ASSEMBLY PERMIT FEES 
 
Small Assembly Permit (50+ attendees) $      25 
*Medium Assembly (100+ attendees)     $      25 
*Large Assembly (200+ attendees)         $    100 
*Requires West Hennepin Public Safety Deposit ($500)    
 
PARK RENTAL FEES (#) 
 
Commercial, daily - resident  $    200 
Commercial, daily - non-resident       $    300 
Individual, daily - resident $      75 
Individual, daily – non-resident $    150  
(Liability Insurance Required) 
   
 
FREQUENTLY CALLED NUMBERS 
 
Public Works Sup. Shawn Bode  763-479-0530 
City Administrator Mark Kaltsas  763-479-0527 
Building Inspector Bruce Satek  763-479-0531 
Asst. City Admin. Beth Horner  763-479-0527 
Office Assistant Trish Bemmels  763-479-0514 
West Hennepin Public Safety  763-479-0500 
Burn permits WHPS   763-479-0500 
Hennepin County            612-348-3000 

 
CREDIT CARD PAYMENTS ACCEPTED FOR FEES IDENTIFIED WITH THE (#) 
SYMBOL.  THE CITY WILL CHARGE THE LISTED FEE, PLUS APPLICABLE 
CHARGES FOR PROCESSING THE CREDIT CARD (CURRENTLY 2.75%, 
PLUS $0.50 FOR ANY TRANSACTION LESS THAN $100). 

 
 
 
 
 

FEE SCHEDULE 
Effective September 1, 2003 
Revised January 19, 2021 

 
 

 
 
 

1920 COUNTY ROAD 90 
INDEPENDENCE MN 55359 

 
PHONE: 763-479-0527 
FAX:      763-479-0528  

 
Website:  https://ci.independence.mn.us 

 
ALL FEES ARE NON-REFUNDABLE. 

Fees are Subject to change 


	010721 Pay App 01 BKV Signed wLetter.pdf
	010721 Pay App 01 BKV Cover Letter
	Pay App #1_BKV SIGNED




